NNC06ZPT004R – RCS Engine

Questions and Answers 5

1. Please allow me to further clarify our request concerning the WBS requirements.  
a)  In the RFP, WBS structure appears to show that Project Management is applicable to the base and not the Options or was it meant to be applicable to both?    
Answer:  Project Management is applicable to the entire Statement of Work as stated in Paragraph 1.

1. Project Management

The Contractor shall perform management functions and establish a management structure to plan, direct, and integrate all activities required by this Statement of Work (SOW) to assure compliance with technical, schedule, and financial commitments of the contract. The Contractor shall include a process for the timely disposition of corrective actions and provide for the reporting of technical data and financial management data as required.  The Contractor shall utilize established management structures and assign a Project Manager (PM) with the authority to direct contract activities. The PM shall assure that the technical, schedule and cost requirements of this contract are fully met.

The Contractor shall accomplish the management and technical control of interdivisional, subcontractor, vendor activities, and utilized facilities required to fulfill the contract requirements.  The financial and performance data provided by the Contractor shall provide management visibility into aspects of interdivisional, subcontractor, and major vendor activities relevant to accomplishing the contract requirements.
b) Are you looking for us to provide the WBS information by phase or function?  We look forward to your reply.
Answer:  Provide the WBS information as associated to the Base and Option Tasks.

2. Is a Work Plan still required when submitting the proposal? If so, will it be an appendix to Volume I? (references: Page F-2, F.5 (b) SOW page 8, 4.1)

Answer:  The Work Plan is required to be submitted  with the Proposal as described in the RFP.

F.5 Reports of Work (b) WORK PLAN (1)  The Original Work Plan shall be submitted along with the proposal.

No it is not an appendix to Volume 1, it is part of Volume 1 Technical.

3. Does the RFP statement “The small business size standard for this acquisition is 1000.” and the cover letter statement “with a size standard of 1,000 employees” refer to 1000 full-time employees, part-time employees, or a combination of both? (references:  Page K-4, K.5 and NASA Cover Letter dated November 10, 2005)

Answer:  Per the Small Business Administration website (http://www.sba.gov/size/indexguide.html) the following definition is provided ad to employees.
Employees — The number of employees of a concern is its average number of persons employed for each pay period over the concern's latest 12 months.  Any person on the payroll must be included as one employee regardless of hours worked or temporary status.  The number of employees of a concern in business under 12 months is based on the average for each pay period it has been in business
4. Where are forms that are referenced as attachments to Section L? (references:  Page L-3, L.6 (g))

Answer:  These forms refer to attachment (g) “Excel Cost Templates”, and attachment (h) “Reaction Control System Task SOW Cost”.
5. How do we obtain copies of EPM and other templates referenced? (references:  Pages L 9- 12 )

Answer:  This is attachment (g) to the RFP.  Refer to RFP L.11.3 SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS b)10.a.

 Excel Pricing Model (EPM) File

The goal of the EPM is to construct a comprehensive summary model of an Offeror’s proposed cost/price volume in an automated format. It is not intended to replace an Offeror’s own cost model, structure and format required to be submitted as supporting information. To ensure a consistent evaluation among Offerors, an Excel file named “CEV RFP-L Cost Templates.xls” (Attachment g) has been constructed which includes templates to capture and summarize proposed cost or pricing information in an automated format. Offerors must provide the templates in conjunction with their own cost model, proposed pricing and supporting cost information. Detailed instructions relative to individual templates are provided as follows.

6. When are the various plans due (Safety and Mission Assurance, Preliminary Hazard Analysis, )? (references:  SOW pages 6 – 7)

Answer:  These are part of the Product Assurance Plan.  Refer to the Statement of Work (attachment (a)), paragraph 3.0

Safety, Health, and Mission Assurance 

The contractor shall develop, document, and implement a plan to the appropriate level to ensure that necessary safety and mission assurance (safety, reliability, maintainability, and quality) activities are implemented and are effective in the mitigation of risk for the program, including methods to measure their performance.  In addition, the contractor shall ensure that subcontractors implement similar safety and mission assurance plans.  An approach to risk management which integrates safety, reliability, maintainability, and quality issues and correlates those issues with probability of mission success such that the contractor routinely considers risk in day-to-day decision making should be implemented.

The contractor shall provide a Product Assurance Plan that describes the approach that will be used to meet the requirements of Section 3.0.  The Product Assurance Plan shall meet the requirements stated in DRD 004
DRD 004 (reference SOW, paragraph 5.3)  
	004
	Product Assurance Plan
	10 days after contract award
	1 hardcopy* 

1 electronic
	3


TITLE:  Product Assurance Plan
DRD NO: 004

The Product Assurance Plan (PAP) outlines the entire structure and plan for the Safety and Mission Assurance program, and describes each of the following activities:

a. Define the interfaces and responsibilities among the Project, SE&I, and S&MA.

b. Incorporate health and safety principles in all planning. 

c. Perform assessment and documentation of each hazard. 

d. Perform a safety assessment of readiness, explicitly noting any exceptions arising from safety issues and concerns. 

e. Provide a reliability, maintainability, and parts assurance program appropriate to the needs of the project. 
f. Provide for an effective Quality Assurance (QA) Program, which assures that quality requirements are met through control of design, operations, processes, procedures, testing, and inspection. 

g. Provide for a software development approach that complies with NASA Software Policy. 

h. Provide for a tailored risk management approach that complies with NASA Policy.

The PAP applies to products (hardware, software, testing services, and scientific research) throughout their life cycle including the development, design, fabrication, assembly, testing, and operation.

7. When is the Quality Assurance Program due? (references:  SOW page 7)

Answer:  See response to question 6.

8. When are the other plans not identified in previous questions due? (references:  SOW page 7, 3.4)
Answer:  See response to question 6
9. Please clarify: Appendix 1e of Volume I lists an Export Control Plan; however, it was deleted from SOW as 1.7.  (reference:  Page L-5, L.9, Table L.9)

Answer:  Refer to:


       RFP F.5 Reports of Work (b) Work Plan:

(1) (ii) A program schedule; 

(1) (iv) INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

RFP H.3 EXPORT LICENSES

RFP L.11.3 b) 10. c)

Each prime Offeror, teaming partner, joint venture partner, or proposed major subcontractor that meets the major subcontractor threshold ($550,000.00 inclusive contract costs) shall include in Part 3 a listing of all foreign subcontractors as defined by the Iran Nonproliferation Act (INA) and all other foreign subcontractors. Offerors are to include, for all proposals involving Russian or foreign entities, the foreign subcontractor’s full name, address, country of incorporation, location of corporate offices and point of contact’s name and phone number. Offerors shall provide a statement identifying the absence of any foreign subcontractors if there are no foreign subcontractors being proposed.  Offerors shall provide an export control plan identifying potential exports of data and hardware to foreign nationals and foreign subcontractors. (See Section F.5 (b)(IV)
10. Is there a b)? (references:  Page L-13, L.11.3)
Answer:  There is  b) Part 2.  There is not a b) Part 2 10. b.

11. Where is “subdivision a. above”?  (references:  Page L-15, L.12)

Answer:  Subdivision a. should be subdivision (i). An amendment to the solicitation will be issued.
12. Section F.5 of the RFP requires submittal of a Work Plan with the proposal. The question is "Will information in the Work Plan be used to evaluate our proposal? For instance, if the detailed program schedule was found only in the Work Plan, does it satisfy L.10(a)(1) requirement for proposing a project schedule as part of the Technical Proposal?"
Answer:  The work plan will be evaluated (reference RFP M.3 SOURCE EVALUATION CRFITERIA (1) TECHNICAL QUALITY (c) MANAGEMENT APPROACH.  In accordance with RFP F.5 REPORTS OF WORK (b)(1) the work plan shall consist of the following 

(ii)  A program schedule (milestones, tasks, activities, events) in adequate detail to provide reasonable measurement of the technical accomplishments which can be summarized to the cost reporting level of the WBS.  The schedule shall reflect the integration with, and the impact of, any export control plans (see (iv) below).  The schedule shall include tasks and projected time required to obtain any required export licenses.

The work plan will satisfy RFP L.10 PREPARATION OF VOLUME I – TECHNICAL PROPOSAL (a) TECHNICAL PROPOSAL 

 (1) The approach and rationale, as described in the Work Plan (see F.5), (based on current knowledge and expertise) by which the offeror proposes to accomplish the requirements and tasks and/or solve the technical problems of the procurement, other than information to be furnished elsewhere as a part of program or project support plan summaries. The offerors shall propose a project schedule and milestones to accomplish the procurement. Descriptions, sketches and approach should be presented in sufficient detail to permit proper evaluation.   Offerors shall include a RCE design concept “model Specification” based on the EIS with the completed definitions for specifications for the offeror to define.
13.   RFP Section F.5.b.1 requires 3 copies of the Work Plan to be submitted with the proposal, but this item is not listed in Table L.9. Is the Work Plan included in the Volume I Technical Volume page count or is it to be delivered as a completely separate document?

Answer:  The first sentence of RFP Section F.5.b.1 will be deleted.  The work plan shall be submitted in accordance with paragraph L.9 Volume I Technical.  An amendment to the solicitation will be issued.  See response to questions 2.
14.   RFP Section F.3 Period of Performance specifies that options 2 and 3 may be exercised simultaneously, what is the approach for the Cost Volume?

Answer:  The vendors cost approach will depend on what is technically proposed.  It shall be submitted so that the government can evaluate the technical and cost approach accordingly.
15.   File "117910-SOL-001-006.xls": Is 4.2.1 meant to be titled "Task 1.0 - Design and Analysis" as is stated in the SOW?

Answer:  The file be referred to is actually attachment (h).  Task 4.2.1 needs to be changed to Task 1.0 – Design and Analysis
16.   RFP Section L.9: If there is no planned foreign participation in the proposed program, is an Export Control Plan required?
Answer:  No.
17.  If a single alternate proposal is submitted per FAR 52.215-1, must a separate CPFF proposal also be submitted?  
Answer:  That Provision does not constrain the offeror as to the type of contractual instrument proposed, nor does it require a separate proposal that addresses the contract type of the RFP.  The government will choose the proposal that it deems to be the best value to the government.

18.   The past performance information submission date is December 2, 2005; this submission is to include past performance information on any Major Subcontractors the Prime intends to employ.  While the Prime intends to comply with the December 2, 2005 date for internal information, the final test subcontractors have yet to be selected and are unable to support the December 2 Past Performance required submission date.  Would it be acceptable to submit an addendum to the Past Performance information that includes the Major Subcontractor information on December 12, 2005
Answer:  Vendors are highly encouraged to submit any or all Past Performance information by December 2, 2005 in order for the Government to complete its evaluation within the tight timeframe.  

The government will accept additional Past Performance information if submitted by December 12, 2005 in accordance with the due date and time of the Technical Volume.

19.  Section L, Para. 6.b, indicates that the proposal shall be submitted in four volumes.  However, Section L.9 seems to indicate that the Technical Volume should be separated into six parts (volumes?) and submitted individually.  Is the Technical Volume to be split into six separate binders and submitted individually, or are "Volumes" Ia, Ib, Ic, 1d, and 1e in the table to be included as tabbed sections within the Technical Volume I?


L. 6    PROPOSAL FORMAT - SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS

 
a.  The proposal shall be submitted both electronically and in  hard copy form. 


b.  Hard copies of the proposal shall be submitted in loose-leaf  binders with each section appropriately tabbed and identified, and  organized into four volumes as indicated in paragraph L.9. Each volume  shall stand alone and provide complete coverage of the topic, including responses to each item described in the proposal instructions. 

L.9  
PROPOSAL FORMAT - SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS, PROPOSAL DELIVERY AND DUE DATES,   PROPOSAL PAGE LIMITATIONS (NFS 1852.215-81) (FEB 1998) - Table
	Volume
	Volume Title
	Due Date
	Due Time (EST)
	No. of Copies*
	Page Limit 

	
	
	
	
	GRC
	JSC
	

	I
	Technical
	12/12/2005
	2:00PM
	O+1+CD
	1+CD
	75

	Ia
	Safety and Health Plan
	12/12/2005
	2:00PM
	O+1+CD
	1+CD
	No Limit

	Ib
	Subcontracting Plan
	12/12/2005
	2:00PM
	O+1+CD
	1+CD
	No Limit

	Ic
	Model Specifications
	12/12/2005
	2:00PM
	O+1+CD
	1+CD
	No Limit

	Id
	Test Plan and Matrix
	12/12/2005
	2:00PM
	O+1+CD
	1+CD
	No Limit

	Ie
	Export Control Plan
	12/12/2005
	2:00PM
	O+1+CD
	1+CD
	No Limit

	II
	Price/Cost
	12/12/2005
	2:00PM
	O+1+CD
	1+CD
	No Limit

	III
	Past Performance
	12/02/2005
	2:00PM
	O+1+CD
	1+CD
	30

	IV
	Signed Model Contract, SF33, and Section K Certifications
	12/12/2005
	2:00PM
	Original only
	none
	No Limit


Table L.9 – Proposal Due Dates, Times, Number of Copies, Page Limits
Answer:  Volume I consists of Technical, Safety and Health Plan, Subcontracting Plan, Model Specifications, Test Plan and Matrix, Export Control Plan.  Each section shall be appropriately tabbed and identified.  

Volume II is Price/Cost.  Each section shall be appropriately tabbed and identified.

Volume III is Past Performance.  Each section shall be appropriately tabbed and identified.

Volume IV is the Signed Model Contract SF33, Section K Certifications, and listing of any exceptions and deviations taken to the RFP (L.13(g)) (see response to question 20)
20. In Section L.10 PREPARANTION OV VOLUME 1 – TECHNICAL PROPOSAL, the following subparagraph appears:

(d) OTHER DOCUMENTS



(1) A listing of exceptions and deviations taken to the RFP, including a summary of exceptions and deviations taken in other volumes of the proposal.



(2) Offeror’s representation, certifications and other statements of offeror fully executed.



(3) Any other information required to comply with all other Section L instructions, conditions and notices to offerors and quoters.


In Section L. 13 PREPARATION OF VOLUME IV-MODEL CONTRACT, the following subparagraph appears:

(g)  Other documents to be included in Volume IV.

(1) A listing of exceptions and deviations taken to the RFP, including a summary of exceptions and deviations taken in other volumes of the proposal.  This listing should only accompany an alternate proposal if submitted.

(2) Any other information required to comply with all other Section L instructions, conditions and notices to offerors and quoters.

DOES the paragraph cited above in Section L.13 supersede the cited paragraph (d) in Section L.10, so that the pertinent information belongs only in Vol. IV Model Contract?

Answer:  Paragraph L10 (d) will be deleted with an amendment to the solicitation.
Does the Government required duplicate information be included in both Vol. I and Vol. IV?  If this is the case, we request that the response to paragraph (d) Other Documents be excluded from the page limits.

Answer:  No, see response to the question above.

21.  In Section F.5 – Reports of Work, subparagraph (b) states a Work Plan is required to be submitted with the proposal, but it is not called out in Section L.9 “Proposal Format”.  The logical place to include this is as “Volume 1f”.  Please verify if this is correct and specify whether there are any page limits for the Work Plan.
Answer:  See the response to question 2 above.
22.  Section L.1, (I) states that an "...alternate proposal that departs from the stated requirements, including an alternate cost-reimbursement contract type."  can be submitted.  Does this allow a contractor to submit a proposal that is a proposal for a 845 Other Transaction type agreement?  Additionally, would a Cooperative Agreement also be acceptable?  Are their other alternate submittals envisioned by NASA as being acceptable approaches?
Answer:  See the response to question 17 above.  
